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Capital Futures Corp.
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

I. Meeting Procedure

i. Call Meeting to Order
i1. Chairman’s Address
1il.  Reporting Matters
iv. Recognition Matters
v. Discussion Matter
vi. Extemporary Motion

vii. Adjournment



Capital Futures Corp.
2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

I1. Meeting Agenda

Date and Time : 10:00 am, May 29, 2025
Place : B2, No. 97, Sec. 2, Dunhua S. Rd., Taipei 106, Taiwan, R.O.C.

Means : Physical shareholders’ meeting

1l

1il.

1v.

V1.

Vil.

Call Meeting to Order

Chairman’s Address

Reporting Matters

1.Presentation on the 2024 business report.

2.The audit committee’s review report on the 2024 financial statements.

3.Report on the distribution of employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration in 2024.
Recognition Matters

1.Adoption of the 2024 business report and consolidated and individual financial statements.
2.Proposal for distribution of 2024 earnings.

Discussion Matter

1.Amendments to the Articles of Incorporation.

Extemporary Motion

Adjournment



ITI. Reporting Matters

1. Reported issue: Presentation on the 2024 business report.
Details: Please refer to Attachment 1 of this handbook for the Company’s 2024 business report
(page 6 ~ 8).

2. Reported issue: The audit committee’s review report on the 2024 financial statements.
Details: Please refer to Attachment 2 of this handbook for 2024 audit committee’s review report

(page 9).

3. Reported issue: Report on the distribution of employees’ compensation and directors’
remuneration in 2024.

Details: The 2024 profit before tax prior to deducting the remuneration for directors and the
compensation for employees was NT$1,496,354,454. According to Article 27 in the
Company’s Articles of Association: “The Company should distribute 0.6% to 2% of the
profit of the current year as employees’ compensation, and 3% or less of its profit of the
current year as directors’ remuneration.” The distribution of compensation to employees
for an amount of NT$17,357,712 and remuneration to directors for an amount of
NT$17,357,712 were approved by the board meeting on March 6, 2025. The
compensation and the remuneration are to be distributed in cash. The aforesaid amount
each accounted for 1.16% of the Company’s 2024 earning. Please refer to Attachment 3
of this handbook. (page 10)



IV. Recognition Matters

1. Subject: Adoption of the 2024 business report, consolidated and individual financial statements.
(The proposal was submitted by the board of directors)
Details:
(1)The Company’s 2024 consolidated financial statements and the individual financial
statements were audited by the CPA Wu, Cheng-Yen and CPA Chen, Yi-Jen of KPMG
Taiwan and were resolved for acceptance in the meeting of the board of directors
(March 6, 2025). The audited financial statements and the business report were
reviewed by the audit committee without any nonconformity identified and with a
review report issued.
(2)Please refer to Attachment 1(page 6 ~ 8) and Attachment 4(page 11 ~ 24) for 2024
business report, 2024 financial statements, and auditors’ report.
Resolution:

2. Subject: Acknowledging the Company’s 2024 earnings distribution.
(The proposal was submitted by the board of directors)
Details:

(1)The distributable net profit: NT$1,204,760,197 equals the 2024 after-tax net profit of
the Company: NT$1,190,927,467 plus unappropriated retained earnings in the
beginning of term: NT$883,587, and plus the adjustment of undistributed earnings in
this year: NT$12,949,143. According to the Article of Association of the Company,
the net profit can be distributed as following:

A.The amount of legal reserve is NT$119,146,480.

B. The amount of special reserve is NT$238,292,961.

C. It was resolved for acceptance in the meeting of the board of directors that cash
dividends to distribute are, rounded down to the nearest integer, NT$707,323,363
(at NT$2.83 per share on the basis of 249,937,584 outstanding shares). The total
payment of shares of odd lots shall be counted as other revenue of the Company, as
for the undistributed earnings in the end of term is NT$139,997,393. The chairman
is authorized to set the dividend day and related issues upon the finalization of the
general meeting of shareholders.

(2)If the number of outstanding shares is affected by the later change in the capital of the
Company, simultaneously the shareholders of the dividend payout ratio needs to be
revised, the chairman is authorized by the shareholder meeting to deal with the
relevant issue.

(3)Please refer to Attachment 5 for the 2024 earnings distribution proposal. (page 25)

Resolution:



V. Discussion Proposal

1. Subject: Amendments to the Articles of Incorporation.
(The proposal was submitted by the board of directors)
Details:

(1)To support the Company’s business development needs, it is proposed to increase the
Company’s authorized capital from NTS$2.5 billion to NT$4 billion, divided into 400
million shares.

(2)Pursuant to the Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-1130385442 dated
November 8, 2024, it is proposed to amend Paragraph 1 of Article 27 of Articles of
Incorporation of the Company to specify the proportion of employee compensation
that shall be allocated to grassroots employees.

(3)Please refer to Attachment 6 for the comparison table before and after amendment.
(page 26 ~ 30)

Resolution:

VI. Extemporary Motion



VII. Attachment
Attachment 1

Capital Futures Corp.
2024 Business Report

1.Operating performance in 2024

The global economy maintained steady growth in 2024, and the effect of curbing the growth of
inflation gradually appeared. The favorable fundamentals continued to give a good
environment for corporate operations and benefited the investment market. The domestic
financial market demonstrated strong momentum, creating a new milestone of profit in the
history of the financial industry. The total volume of the Company’s domestic futures
brokerage business in 2024 was 69.23 million lots, with a market share of 8.75%, a significant
increase of 33.78% as compared with 51.75 million lots in 2023, and the trading volume of its
overseas futures business was about 8.69 million lots, with a market share of 19.70%, a
significant increase of 12.95% as compared with 7.69 million lots in 2023. In 2024, due to the
business expansion, the customers’ margin also increased by 30.7% compared to the last year,
and the total interest income increased accordingly. Therefore, the consolidated income in 2024
was NT$2,639,376 thousand, an increase of 19.29% compared to the consolidated income of
NT$2,212,577 thousand in 2023; and the consolidated net income after tax was NT$1,192,126
thousand in 2024, an increase of 17.91% compared to the consolidated net income after tax of
NT$1,011,052 thousand in 2023. The Company's operating strategies include diversifying its
business and profits, actively grasping the opportunities of digital financial development,
promoting digital platforms and channels, in order to implement inclusive financing and
improve competitiveness.

With the development of financial technologies and the promotion of digital businesses, the
efficiency and convenience of services in financial industry are greatly improved, which makes
futures market more dynamic. The Company keeps actively engaged in the “green” and
“digital” transformation through their integration, making good use of digital tools to build a
technological platform for the systematization of sustainable and green financial systems,
enhancing the trading experience of customers, and helping them achieve the goal of wealth
growth. The Company also introduces a “Design Thinking” based method to advocate
user-centered design thinking, produce innovative products and services that meet customer
needs, establish a corporate culture of innovation, and root innovative thinking in its DNA
through practice in workshop and seeds training. And the Company establishes reward
programs for digital innovation to stimulate staff’s innovative potential to improve its
efficiency and reduce risks.

The Company has 7 directors in its Board of Directors (including 3 independent directors) who
are all with the profession of operation, management, finance, accounting, law, international
market and strategy. Business supervision and management can be implemented by virtue of
director’s rich financial experience, various business expertise and diversified backgrounds,
which will facilitate the Company to promote its overall development strategies, improve its
business performance and corporate operating systems, and safeguard investors’ rights and
Interests.

Capital Futures devotes itself to fulfilling its commitment and mission to implement
sustainable development in the three dimensions of E (Environment), S (Society) and G
(Governance), with the vision of “becoming a digital financial company that touches customers
the most”. To implement good corporate governance, in addition to complying with the
Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles and other laws and regulations, Capital Futures
has been continuously thinking about how to establish better systems and processes with a



high-quality corporate culture and professional management team, and has taken specific
actions in protecting shareholders' rights and interests, strengthening the functions of the Board
of Directors, enhancing the corporate governance relationship between the Company and its
affiliated enterprises, implementing full disclosure and transparency of information, and
improving internal control and auditing systems, in order to protect shareholders' rights and
interests. The Company will strengthen the corporate governance, treating-customer-fairly,
green digital finance, social services and other principles, continue to pursue excellence, create
a leading core competitive advantage, and achieve corporate sustainable development goals.

11.2024 income and profit analysis (Consolidated)
Unit: NT$ Thousand

Item 2024 2023
Income 2,639,376 2,212,577
Expenses 2,640,220 2,141,643
Non-operating income and expenses 1,464,029 1,205,924
Net income before tax 1,463,185 1,276,858
Net income after tax 1,192,126 1,011,052
Return on Equity (%) 15.98% 14.49%
Net profit margin (%) 45.17% 45.70%
Return on assets (%) 2.14% 2.03%
Earnings per share after tax (dollar) 5.66 4.80

II.Operating plans and development strategies for the future

Looking forward to 2025, it is expected that the global financial markets will continue to be
prosperous, the moderate growth of global economy, the continuous Al investment boom, and
the profit growth of companies will be the key to supporting the upward trend in the stock
market. However, in the face of uncertainties in the financial markets, such as the new U.S.
economic and trade policies, climate change, geopolitical tensions, and inflationary pressures,
the futures market has demonstrated its resilience in performing the functions of risk
management and asset value protection, which will provide more opportunities for the
development of the futures market. In addition, the positive attitude of the authorities towards
the financial policies will give the domestic financial industry a new look in the future. In
addition, the development of the financial industry is closely related to FinTech, including the
use of artificial intelligence and big data, and the application of blockchain and digital
currency. The Company is committed to strengthening the use of Al to build innovative
financial digital services, providing customers with smarter and more reliable financial
services, and establishing new competitive advantages.

The Company's business plan and business development strategies in 2025 are as follows:

(DFutures + securities integrated development strategy

1.As to the integrated marketing and account opening for futures + securities brokerage
businesses, personnel will get securities-related qualification and accept training on
securities business-related ability.

2.Enhance the promotion of individual stock day-trading and strategic trading to attract
day-trading customers and asset customers.

3.In leveraged transaction business, the Company uses the CFD advantages of U.S. stock,
such as low threshold and long/short flexibility, and launches the non-leveraged U.S.
stock CFDs, attracting the customers of securities sub-brokerage business and
providing them with more diversified choices.



4.The Company’s subsidiary in Hong Kong will develop (global) “futures + securities”
integrated businesses by itself-built platforms, and attract customers from Singapore,
Malaysia, and Hong Kong to trade Taiwan's securities and futures.
(IDDigital and Al Development Strategy
1.Establish an Al department to lead the financial industry in fully developing enterprise
Al including financial services, system platforms, consulting services, and precision
marketing, in order to create differentiated competitive advantages.
2.Introduce Al learning into Smart Push, optimize with customer feedback data, and
improve the performance of Smart Push. Establish a professional short video
production team to replace text-based marketing with short videos, expand the
marketing coverage and increase the marketing effect.
3.Keep introducing design thinking and training core coaches, to root the innovation DNA
into the whole company and make it an inheritable core competency.
(ITII)Innovative business strategy
1.The Leverage Transaction Department will develop new products independently, such
as high-interest currency portfolio index, to meet the demand of spot customers for
high-interest products, cooperate with Proprietary Trading Department on
market-making, and increase proprietary strategies to optimize its performance.
2.The market-making proprietary team is planning to enter new markets in India and
Thailand to diversify the markets and increase profit sources.
3.The Managed Futures Department will continue to expand the scale of asset
management in Taiwan by capitalizing on its core competence of “low risk, high
return”, and expand the customer base of overseas assets to increase its volume of
managed assets.
(IV)Talent cultivation and rotation strategy
1.The Company will list cultivation and introduction of outstanding talents as the KPIs of
various department leaders. The talents in various departments are the Company’s
assets, and should be adjusted and rotated properly to develop their potential.
2.Combine external resources to expand the activities of “T-Sport for Top Trader”, and
continue to cooperate with universities to cultivate futures trading talents on campus.
3.Redesign the internship program, including remuneration, incentives, and internship
content, to more effectively recruit internship students and search for talents through
internship training.
(V)ESG green finance strategy
1.In accordance with the policies and guidelines of competent authorities, the Company
has established an accountability framework and a “business-like” development
model, and the three teams of the ESG committee meet regularly to set goals,
develop strategies, and review effectiveness.
2.Utilize digital technologies in investment, business, marketing, and operations to
effectively increase efficiency and reduce carbon emissions.
3.Promote campus education, design and promote leveraged micro-instruments, and
redesign the counter experience and website browsing process for the “vulnerable
groups” to truly realize the spirit of inclusive financing.

Chairman: President: Accounting manager:
Chia, Chung-Tao Mao, Chen-Hua Lin, Li-Juan



Attachment 2

Capital Futures Corp.
2024 Audit Committee’s Review Report

The board of directors has prepared the 2024 fiscal year Individual and Consolidated
Financial Statements (hereinafter, the “Financial Statements”) of the Company, which were audited
by the CPAs of KPMG Taiwan, “Wu, Cheng-Yen” and “Chen, Yi-Jen”, with an unmodified opinion
issued in the Independent Auditor’s Report. We, as the Audit Committee of the Company, have
reviewed the Financial Statements that were present fairly with the Report prepared in accordance
with the relevant regulations of the Securities and Exchange Act and the Company Act, and hereby

present for your recognition.

Capital Futures Corp.

Chairman of Audit Committee

Lin, Juh-Cheng

March 6, 2025



Attachment 3

Distribution status of employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration in 2024

1. The distribution of the compensation to employees for an amount of NT$17,357,712 and the
remuneration to directors for an amount of NT$ were resolved in the board meeting of the Company on
March 6, 2025. Aforementioned compensation and remuneration will all be distributed in cash, and the
amount respectively accounted for 1.16% of the Company’s 2024 earning which refers to the amount
before deduction of the compensation and the remuneration.

2. The difference between the amount of compensation to employees and remuneration to directors
resolved by the board of directors and the estimated amount recognized as expense of the fiscal years as

follows:
Unit: NT$
Proposed amount of Estimated amount Amount
Itemn distribution resolved by | recognized as expense of The reason and
the Board of Directors of the fiscal year difference | treatment of difference
A) (B) (A-B)
Compensation to employees 17,357,712 17,357,712 0 No difference
Remuneration to directors 17,357,712 17,357,712 0 No difference

10



Attachment 4

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of Capital Futures Corporation
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Capital Futures Corporation and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023 and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of matertial accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, the related rules of
Preparing Financial Reports of Managed Futures Enterprises, the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Firms and with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”), Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations Committee (““SIC”) endorsed and
issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Key audit matters of the Group's financial statements are stated as
follows:

Brokerage fee revenue recognized:

Related accounting policies of brokerage fee revenue recognized, please refer to Note 4(n) revenue recognition .
Explanation of brokerage fee revenue, please refer to the consolidated financial report Note 6(m)(i)
comprehensive income statement brokerage fee revenue.

11



4-1
Explanation of key audit matters:

The Group's main income is brokerage fee revenue from entrusted futures dealing. The existence and accuracy
of brokerage fee revenue have major affect on the financial report. Therefore, brokerage fee revenue recognized
is one of the important evaluation matters of the Group's financial report.

Audit procedures in response:

According to the key audit matters as described above, we perform main audit procedures including the
sampling test on brokerage business dealing internal control and brokerage fee revenue recorded amount, then
compare with the entrusted data from brokerage business and evaluate the revenue recognized policies in
compliance with the related bulletin.

Other Matter

Capital Futures Corporation has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission
Merchants, the related rules of Preparing Financial Reports of Managed Futures Enterprises, the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms and with the IFRSs, 1ASs, IFRIC, SIC
endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the Audit Committee, are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

12



42

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Wu, Cheng-Yen and
Chen, Yi-Jen.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 6, 2025

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and
not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors' report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors' report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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401000
410000
421300
421500
421600
421610
424100
424200
424400
424500
424800
424900
428000

501000
502000
521200
521640
425300
524100
524300
528000
531000
532000
533000

602000

902001
701000

805000
805500
805510
805540
805599

805600
805610
805699

805000
902006

913100
913200

914100
914200

975000
985000

(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Share)

Income:
Brokerage fee revenue (Note 6(m))
Net gains (losses) on sale of trading securities
Dividend revenue
Net gains (losses) on measurement of trading securities at fair value through profit or loss
Net gains (losses) on covering of borrowed securities and bonds with resale agreements-short sales
Net gains (losses) on borrowed securities and bonds with resale agreements-short sales at fair value through profit or loss
Futures commission revenue (Note 6(m))
Securities commission revenue
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments- futures (Note 6(m))
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments - OTC (Note 6(m))
Management fee revenue
Consulting fee revenue
Other operating revenue

Expenses:
Brokerage fees
Brokerage fees - proprietary trading
Financial costs
Loss from securities borrowing transactions
Expected credit impairment losses and reversal gains (Note 6(n))
Futures commission expenses (Note 6(m))
Clearing and settlement expenses
Other operating expenditure
Employee benefit expenses (Note 6(m))
Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 6(m))
Other operating expenses (Note 6(m))

Net operating income (loss)
Non-operating income and expenses:
Other gains and losses (Note 6(m))

Net income before income tax

Less: Income tax expenses (Note 6(j))

Net income

Other comprehensive income:

Components that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit plans (Note 6(i))
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Subtotal of components that may not be reclassified subsequently into profit or loss
Components that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Subtotal of components that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Net income attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Basic earnings per share (NT dollars) (Note 6(1))
Diluted earnings per share (NT dollars) (Note 6(1))

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2024 2023
Amount % _Amount %
1,926,445 73 1,631,578 74
77,210 3 (126,081)  (6)
10,206 - 134,420 6
29,945 1 21,397 1
42,753 2 (78,525) (4
7,712 - (18,733) (1)
319,734 12 301,191 14
24,648 1 14,199 1
66,563 3 209,477 9
103,843 4 102,359 5
9,018 - 3,377 -
11,847 1 6,418 -
9.452 _ - 11,500 __ 1
2,639,376 _100 _ 2,212,577 _100
408,438 16 316,731 14
12,366 - 6,889 -
72,545 3 43,838 2
- - 8 -
(282) - (248) -
476,133 18 434874 20
214,318 8 167,457 8
7,503 - 6,146 -
751,154 28 638,366 29
77,941 3 63,172 3
620,104 _ 24 464,410 _ 21
2,640,220 _100 _ 2,141,643 _ 97
(844) _ - 70,934 __ 3
1,464,029 _ 55 1,205,924 _ 55
1.464,029 _ 55 1,205,924 _ 55
1,463,185 55 1,276,858 58
271,059 __10 265,806 _ 12
1,192,126 _ 45 1,011,052 _ 46
537 - 934) -
21,821 1 21,355 1
22,358 1 20,421 1
77,926 3 (3,086) -
77,926 __ 3 (3.086) __ -
100284 _ 4 17335 __ 1
1,292,410 _ 49 _ 1,028,387 _ 47
1,190,927 45 1,010,196 46
1,199 _ - 856 _ -
1,192,126 _ 45 _ 1,011,052 _ 46
1,291,095 49 1,027,583 47
1,315 _ - 804 _ -
1,292,410 _ 49 _ 1,028,387 _ 47
5.66 4.80
5.65 4.79
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2024 2023
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Net income before income tax $ 1,463,185 1,276,858
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 71,223 57,558
Amortization expense 6,718 5614
Expected credit impairment reversal gain (282) (248)
Net gain on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (42,411) (3,604)
Interest expense 72,545 43,838
Interest income (including financial income) (1,388,010) (1,207,305)
Dividend revenue (22,522) (395,463)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment - 33
Gain on lease modification - (66)
Impairment loss 6,504 4,627
Total adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) (1,296,235) (1,495,016)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (278,768) (234,870)
Increase in bond purchased under resale agreements (219,555) (48,468)
(Increase) decrease in customer margin accounts (11,826,148) 617,536
Decrease in receivable-futures margin 282 306
(Increase) decrease in leverage contract trading - customet's margin accounts (195,448) 143,566
(Increase) decrease in security borrowing margin (263,563) 779,757
(Increase) decrease in security borrowing collateral price (284,665) 356,153
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 24,102 (33,025)
Increase in accounts receivable - related parties (2,334) (234)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments 7,303 (11,454)
Increase in net defined benefit assets (252) (2,563)
(Increasc) decrease in other receivables (289,566) 128,825
Decrease in other receivables- related parties 69 2,447
Increase in other current assets (1,050,003) -
Increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 294,005 (636,837)
Increase (decrease) in futures traders' equity 11,680,514 (564,592)
Increase (decrease) in leverage contract trading - customer's equity 173,817 (116,354)
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (66,948) 64,325
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable - related parties 1,057 (3,805)
Increase (decrease) in advance receipts 590 (245)
Increase (decrease) in receipts under custody 2,090 (204)
Increase (decrease) in other payables 78,104 (5,674)
Increase (decrease) in other payables - related parties 1,759 (2,400)
Increase in provisions for liabilities 701 1,562
Increase in other current liabilities 10,750 25,224
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (2,202,107) 458,976
Total adjustments (3,498,342) (1,036,040)
Cash (outflow) inflow generated from operations (2,035,157) 240,818
Interest received 1,395,392 1,180,254
Dividends received 21,533 393,036
Interest paid (74,710) (44,644)
Income taxes paid (312,837) (193.414)
Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities (1,005,779) 1,576,050
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - (114,382)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - 36,610
Acquisition of property and equipment (39,944) (86,423)
Increase in deposits settlement fund (7,310) (148,835)
Increase in refundable deposits (870) (1,275)
Acquisition of intangible assets (9,451) (7,008)
Increase in prepayments for business facilities (5,681) (1,170)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (63,256) (322.483)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Cash dividends paid (723,905) (635,522)
Payments of lease liabilities (33,068) (30,771)
Proceeds from right of inclusion options exercised 2 -
Net cash flows used in financing activities (756.971) (666.,293)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 77,376 (3,004)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,748,630) 584,270
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 5,741,152 5,156,882
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 3,992,522 5,741,152

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of Capital Futures Corporation
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Capital Futures Corporation(“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Futures Commission Merchants, the related rules of Preparing Financial Reports of Managed Futures
Enterprises and the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with The
Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. Key audit matters of the Company's financial statements are stated as follows:

Brokerage fee revenue recognized:

Related accounting policies of brokerage fee revenue recognized, please refer to Note 4(n) revenue recognition.
Explanation of brokerage fee revenue, please refer to the financial report Note 6(n)(i) comprehensive income
statement brokerage fee revenue.
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Explanation of key audit matters:

The Company's main income is brokerage fee revenue from entrusted futures dealing. The existence and
accuracy of brokerage fee revenue have major affect on the financial report. Therefore, brokerage fee revenue
recognized is one of the important evaluation matters of the Company's financial report.

Audit procedures in response:

According to the key audit matters as described above, we perform main audit procedures including the
sampling test on brokerage business dealing internal control and brokerage fee revenue recorded amount, then
compare with the entrusted data from brokerage business and evaluate the revenue recognized policies in
compliance with the related bulletin.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, the
related rules of Preparing Financial Reports of Managed Futures Enterprises and the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the Audit Committee, are responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in other
entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Wu, Cheng-Yen and
Chen, Yi-Jen.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 6, 2025

Notes to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, financial performance and cash flows in
accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other
jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the
Republic of China.

The independent auditors' report and the accompanying financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version prepared
and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English and Chinese
language independent auditors' report and financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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401000
410000
421300
421500
421600
421610
424200
424400
424500
424800
424900
428000

501000
502000
521200
521640
425300
524100
524300
528000
531000
532000
533000

601100
602000

902001
701000

805000
805500
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805600
805610
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805699

805000
902006

975000
985000

(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Share)

2024 2023
Amount %o Amount %
Income: — —
Brokerage fee revenue (Note 6(n)) $ 2,029,009 84 1,734,612 87
Net gains (losses) on sale of trading securities 77,210 3 (126,081)  (6)
Dividend revenue 10,206 - 134,409 7
Net gains (losses) on measurement of trading securities at fair value through profit or loss (11,763) - 8815 -
Net gains (losses) on covering of borrowed securities and bonds with resale agreements-short sales 42,753 2 (78,525) (4)
Net gains (losses) on borrowed securities and bonds with resale agreements-short sales at fair value through profit or loss 7,712 - (18,733) (1)
Securities commission revenue 23,478 1 12,761 1
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments- futures (Note 6(n)) 109,986 5 222,589 11
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments - OTC (Note 6(n)) 103,843 102,359 5
Management fee revenue 9,018 - 3,377 -
Consulting fee revenue 11,847 1 6,418 -
Other operating revenue(loss) (305) _ - 1,025 _ -

Expenses:

2412994 _100

2,003,026 _100

Brokerage fees 307,472 13 243,617 12
Brokerage fees - proprietary trading 12,366 1 6,889 -
Financial costs 91,331 4 63,714 3
Loss from securities borrowing transactions - - 8 -
Expected credit impairment losses and reversal gains (Note 6(0)) (282) - 299 -
Futures commission expenses (Note 6(n)) 419,503 17 372,312 19
Clearing and settlement expenses 214,318 9 167,457 8
Other operating expenditure 7,503 - 6,146 -
Employee benefit expenses (Note 6(n)) 672,020 28 572,204 29
Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 6(n)) 67,961 3 52,747 3
Other operating expenses (Note 6(n)) 516,027 _ 21 417,165 _ 21
2308219 _ 96 1,901,960 _ 95
Net operating income 104775 __ 4 101,066 _ 5
Non-operating income and expenses:
Shares of profit of associates and joint ventures under equity method (Note 6(c)) (12,795) (1) 71,338 4
Other gains and losses (Note 6(n)) 1,369,659 _ 57 1,103.310 _ 55
1,356,864 _ 56 1,174,648 _ 59
Net income before income tax 1,461,639 60 1,275,714 64
Less: Income tax expenses (Note 6(k)) 270,712 _ 11 265,518 _ 13
Net income 1,190,927 _ 49 1,010,196 _ 51
Other comprehensive income:
Components that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit plans (Note 6(j)) 537 - 934) -
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 21,821 1 21,355 1
Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - - -
Subtotal of components that may not be reclassified subsequently into profit or loss 22358 _ 1 20421 _ 1
Components that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 77,609 3 (2915) -
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method, 201 - (119) -
components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - - -
Subtotal of components that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 77810 _ 3 (3.034) _ -
Other comprehensive income 100.168 _ 4 17,387 _ 1
Total comprehensive income $_ 1,291,095 _ 53 1,027,583 _ 52
Basic earnings per share (NT dollars) (Note 6(m)) S 5.66 4.80
Diluted earnings per share (NT dollars) (Note 6(m)) S 5.65 4.79

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Net income before income tax
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit impairment reversal gain

Net (gain) loss on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest expense

Interest income (including financial income)

Dividend revenue

Shares of profit of associates and joint ventures under equity method

Gain on lease modification

Total adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Increase in bond purchased under resale agreements
(Increase) decrease in customer margin accounts
Decrease in receivable-futures margin

(Increase) decrease in leverage contract trading - customer's margin accounts

(Increase) decrease in security borrowing margin
(Increase) decrease in security borrowing collateral price
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable

Increase in accounts receivable - related parties

Increase in prepayments

Decrease in other receivables

(Increase) decrease in other receivables- related parties
Increase in net defined benefit asset

Increase in other current assets

Increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Increase (decrease) in futures traders' equity
Increase (decrease) in leverage contract trading - customer's equity
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable - related parties
Increase (decrease) in advance receipts
Increase (decrease) in receipts under custody
Increase (decrease) in other payables
Increase (decrease) in other payables - related parties
Increase in provisions for liabilities
Increase in other current liabilities
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities
Total adjustments
Cash (outflow) inflow generated from operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Acquisition of property and equipment
Increase in deposits settlement fund
Decrease in deposits settlement fund
Increase in refundable deposits
Acquisition of intangible assets
Increase in prepayments for business facilities
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Cash dividends paid
Payments of lease liabilities
Proceeds from right of inclusion options exercised
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2024 2023
1,461,639 1,275,714
61,379 47,421
6,582 5,326
(282) (299)
(703) 8,978
91,331 63,714
(1,277,919) (1,100,337)
(22,522) (395,452)
12,795 (71,338)
- 35)
(1.129.339) (1.441,992)
(244,433) (179,543)
(219,555) (48,468)
(11,626,036) 739,967
282 306
(195,448) 143,566
(263,563) 779,757
(284,665) 356,153
24,109 (33,029)
(2,334) (234)
(1,073) (98)
1,385 3,450
(28) 3,652
(252) (2,563)
(1,050,003) -
294,005 (636,837)
11,612,948 (759,065)
173,817 (116,354)
(67,034) 64,326
1,057 (3,805)
590 (245)
2,060 (196)
74,765 (6,466)
16 (5,365)
690 899
10,750 25224
(1.757.950) 325,032
(2.887.289) (1.116.960)
(1,425,650) 158,754
1,287,644 1,075,214
21,533 393,025
(92,427) (62,863)
(312.472) (193,096)
(521.372) 1.371,034
- (114,382)
- 36,610
(32,829) (84,191)
(8,094) -
- 9,708
- (1,336)
9.451) (7,008)
(5.681) (1.170)
(56,055) (161,769)
(723,905) (635,522)
(26,437 (24,672)
2 -
(750.340) (660,194)
(1,327,767) 549,071
5,062,327 4,513,256
3,734,560 5,062,327




Attachment 5

Capital Futures Corp.
2024 Profit Distribution Table
No. Items Amount Notes
1 [Beginning balance of unappropriated retained earnings 883,587
Add:Actuarial gains on defined benefit plan included in
2 . . 537,337
retained earnings
Add:Reversal of Special reserve appropriated due to other
3 . , 12,411,806
reduction of shareholders’equity occurred
4 Add:Net profit after tax 1,190,927,467
5 |Distributable net profit 1,204,760,197
6 Less:10% Legal reserve 119,146,480 | (2+4)*10%
7 Less:20% Special reserve 238,292,961 | (2+4)*20%
Distributable items:
Less:Dividend to shareholders
8 Cash dividends on common shares (NT$2.83 per share) 707,323,363
9 [Ending balance of unappropriated retained earnings 139,997,393

Note 1:Principle of profit distribution means that the profit from the current year should be distributed with priority.

Note 2:The cash dividend on common shares (NT$2.83 per share) is calculated by 249,937,584 of outstanding common shares.
Note 3: In accordance with the ruling letter No. Jing-Shang-Zi 10802432410 dated January 9, 2020 issued by the Ministry of

Economic Affairs, the legal reserve shall be set aside from “the sum of i) net income for the period and ii) items, other
than net income for the period, included in the undistributed earnings of the current year”.

Note 4: No.9 Ending balance of unappropriated retained earnings is the amount

Chairman: President: Accounting manager:

Chia, Chung-Tao Mao, Chen-Hua Lin, Li-Juan
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Attachment 6

Capital Futures Corp.
Comparison table for the Articles of Association Before and After Amendment

After the Amendment

Before the Amendment

Article 4

The Company’s total registered capital is NT$4 billion
exact, which is divided into 400 million shares at NT$10
per share; the board of directors is authorized to approve
such shares issued in batches. Employees of the Company
subscribing for new shares in accordance with the
Company Act include employees of the Company’s parents
or subsidiaries meeting certain specific requirements. The
certain specific requirements shall be specified by the
board of directors.

Article 4

The Company’s total registered capital is NT$2.5 billion
exact, which is divided into 250 million shares at NT$10
per share; the board of directors is authorized to approve
such shares issued in batches. Employees of the Company
subscribing for new shares in accordance with the
Company Act include employees of the Company’s parents
or subsidiaries meeting certain specific requirements. The
certain specific requirements shall be specified by the
board of directors.

Article 27

The Company should distribute 0.6% to 2% of the profit of
the current year distributable as employees’ compensation,
including 0.4% or more for grassroots employees, and 3%
or less of its profit of the current year distributable as
directors’ remuneration. However, the Company’s
accumulated losses shall have been covered first.

The Company’s profit of the current year distributable
mentioned above is the earnings before tax deducting
employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration. A
company may, by a resolution of majority vote at a
meeting of board of directors attended by two-thirds or
more of the total number of directors, have the profit
distributable as employees’ compensation and directors’
remuneration; in addition, a report of such distribution
shall be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting.

The employees’ compensation can be in the form of shares
or cash. And such compensation may apply to the
employees of the Company’s parents or subsidiaries who
meet certain specific requirements which shall be
determined by the board of directors.

Article 27

The Company should distribute 0.6% to 2% of the profit of
the current year distributable as employees’ compensation,
and 3% or less of its profit of the current year distributable
as directors’ remuneration. However, the Company’s
accumulated losses shall have been covered first.

The Company’s profit of the current year distributable
mentioned above is the earnings before tax deducting
employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration. A
company may, by a resolution of majority vote at a
meeting of board of directors attended by two-thirds or
more of the total number of directors, have the profit
distributable as employees’ compensation and directors’
remuneration; in addition, a report of such distribution
shall be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting.

The employees’ compensation can be in the form of shares
or cash. And such compensation may apply to the
employees of the Company’s parents or subsidiaries who
meet certain specific requirements which shall be
determined by the board of directors.

Article 31

This Articles of Association was formulated on January 4,
1997. The first amendment was made on August 11, 1997;
the second amendment was made on April 27, 1997; the
third amendment was made on April 8, 2002; the fourth
amendment was made on November 14, 2002; the fifth
amendment was made on June 27, 2003; the sixth
amendment was made on March 17, 2008; the seventh
amendment was made on August 26, 2008; the eighth
amendment was made on May 27, 2009; the ninth
amendment was made on May 27, 2010; the tenth
amendment was made on June 19, 2012; the eleventh
amendment was made on May 20, 2014; the twelfth
amendment was made on May 20, 2015; the thirteenth
amendment was made on May 27, 2016; the fourteenth
amendment was made on May 31, 2017; the fifteenth
amendment was made on June 19, 2020; the sixteen
amendment was made on June 21, 2022; the seventeen
amendment was made on ,2025.

Article 31

This Articles of Association was formulated on January 4,
1997. The first amendment was made on August 11, 1997;
the second amendment was made on April 27, 1997; the
third amendment was made on April 8, 2002; the fourth
amendment was made on November 14, 2002; the fifth
amendment was made on June 27, 2003; the sixth
amendment was made on March 17, 2008; the seventh
amendment was made on August 26, 2008; the eighth
amendment was made on May 27, 2009; the ninth
amendment was made on May 27, 2010; the tenth
amendment was made on June 19, 2012; the eleventh
amendment was made on May 20, 2014; the twelfth
amendment was made on May 20, 2015; the thirteenth
amendment was made on May 27, 2016; the fourteenth
amendment was made on May 31, 2017, the fifteenth
amendment was made on June 19, 2020; the sixteen
amendment was made on June 21, 2022.
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Article 1

Atrticle 2

Article 3

Article 4

Article 5

Article 6

Article 7

Article 8

Article 9
Article 10

Article 11

Article 12

Article 13

Capital Futures Corp.
Articles of Association (Draft)

The Company is organized in accordance with the provisions of the R.O.C. Company Act, and known as
“Capital Futures Corp.”

The Company’s business scope is as follows:
(1) H401011 Futures commission merchant
(Limited to those approved by the FSC)
(2) H405011 Futures consulting business
(3) H407011 Futures management business
(4) H310011 Securities introducing broker
(5) H304011 Securities investment consulting enterprise
(6) H301011 Securities firm
(7) H404011 Leverage transaction merchant

The Company’s headquarter is located in Taipei; the board of directors may, depending on business needs,
establish domestic and overseas branches in appropriate locations on approval by the Competent
Authority.

The Company’s total registered capital is NT$4 billion exact, which is divided into_ 400 million shares at
NT$10 per share; the board of directors is authorized to approve such shares issued in batches. Employees
of the Company subscribing for new shares in accordance with the Company Act include employees of the
Company’s parents or subsidiaries meeting certain specific requirements. The certain specific
requirements shall be specified by the board of directors.

The Company’s shares are in registered form and issued in accordance with the Company Act and other
relevant rules and regulations of the Republic of China. After public offering of shares the Company is
exempt from printing physical share certificates. The Taiwan Securities Central Depository should be
contacted for registration of the shares issued pursuant to the preceding provisions.

The Company’s shareholders should send to the Company their real names, addresses, specimen of their
seals, and uniform tax numbers for registration and future references; this requirement also applies when
there is a change to the information above.

Shareholders should collect dividends or bonuses from the Company or exercise other rights based on
their seals filed with the Company.

Unless otherwise provided in law, the provisions in Regulations Governing the Administration of
Shareholder Services of Public Companies promulgated by the Competent Authority should be followed in
handling share transfer, share pledge, report of share loss, inheritance, gifting, report of seal loss or
change, or change of address.

A Nominal fee may be charged for shareholders’ application for share renewal or replacement.

Share book closures are 60 days before each regular shareholders meeting, 30 days before each

extraordinary shareholders meeting, or five days before the ex-day for the Company’s payment of

dividends, bonuses or other benefits.

The Company’s shareholders meetings are divided into the following two

types:

(1) General shareholders meeting, to be convened within six months after the end of each fiscal year.

(2) Extraordinary shareholders meeting, to be convened when necessary in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations.

Regarding convening of the aforementioned meetings, in accordance with relevant laws and regulations a

written or electronic notice should be sent to shareholders 30 days before a general shareholders meeting

or 15 days before an extraordinary shareholders meeting to notify shareholders of the place and the

subject. The Company’s shareholders meetings may be held by means of visual communication network

or other methods promulgated by the central competent authority. For shareholders with less than a

thousand registered shares, the convening notice to such shareholders may be in the form of a public

announcement in accordance with other relevant laws and regulations.

Except the non-voting shares stipulated in Article 179 of the Company Act or in other laws and decrees,
each share has one voting right.

A shareholder who is unable to attend a general meeting may present the power of attorney issued by the
Company with the level of authorization stipulated, and appoint a proxy to attend the meeting on his
behalf. Unless otherwise provided in Article 177 of the Company Act, the requirements in Regulations
Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies issued by the
Competent Authority should be followed.
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Article 14

Article 14-1

Article 15

Article 16

Article 17

Article 17-1

Articlel8

Article 19

Unless otherwise provided in relevant laws or regulations, shareholders or proxies of shareholders who
hold more than half of the total number of issued shares should be present in a shareholders meeting
before the meeting may start and the resolution be represented, and the resolution should be passed by
more than half of the shareholders present at the meeting. The voting power at a shareholders' meeting
may be exercised by way of electronic transmission; the method of execution shall comply with relevant
regulations.

Before the Company intends to report the voidance of public issue, it should present a proposal at a
shareholders meeting for special resolution, and no further change of this Article 14-1 should be made
during the period of the Company’s shares are traded on the Emerging Market or the Taipei Exchange.

A shareholders meeting shall be convened by the board of directors and the chairman of the board shall be
the meeting’s chairman. In case the chairman of the board of directors is on leave or absent or cannot
exercise his power and authority for any cause, the vice chairman shall act on his behalf. In case the vice
chairman is also on leave or absent or unable to exercise his power and authority for any cause, the
chairman of the board of directors shall designate one of the directors to act on his behalf. In the absence
of such a designation, the directors shall elect from among themselves an acting chairman of the board of
directors. For a sharecholders meeting convened by a person with the convening right but other than the
board members, the person who convenes the meeting shall be the meeting’s chairman; if there are two or
more such persons, then the chairman should be selected between/among such persons.

The resolutions made in a shareholders meeting should be recorded in the meeting minutes, which should
be signed by the meeting’s chairman or affixed with his seal and distributed to the shareholders within 20
days after the meeting.

Preparation and distribution of the meeting minutes may be notified of such meeting minutes though a
public announcement.

The Company’s board of directors consists of seven to nine directors who are elected in shareholders
meetings among competent persons. Each person has a term of three years, and may be re-elected.
Among the directors in the preceding paragraph, independent directors should account for three or more,
and be no less than one-fifth of the total directors. Directors should be elected through a nomination
system and by shareholders from a list of director candidates.

Relevant rules of the Competent Authority should be followed concerning independent directors’
professional qualifications, shareholdings, restrictions on their concurrent jobs, the method for nomination
of candidates and other binding matters. Provisions of the securities regulatory body should be followed
concerning the percentage of directors’ total shareholdings.

In electing directors in shareholders meetings, except stipulated in laws and decrees, each share has the
same number of voting rights as the number of directors to be elected. Such voting rights may be used on
one single person or distributed among a number of people, and the persons winning most votes are
elected. If two or more persons win the same number of votes but the total number of specified seats is
exceeded, then a decision may be made among the persons winning the same number of votes through a
drawing of lots; for those who are absent the chairman will perform the drawing on their behalf.

A chairman and a vice chairman of the board should be elected by the Directors among themselves. The
chairman of the board externally represents the Company. In case the chairman of the board of directors is
on leave or absent or cannot exercise his power and authority for any cause, the vice chairman shall act on
his behalf. In case the vice chairman is also on leave or absent or unable to exercise his power and
authority for any cause, the chairman of the board of directors shall designate one of the directors to act on
his behalf. In the absence of such a designation, the directors shall elect from among themselves an acting
chairman of the board of directors.

The board meeting should be convened by the chairman of the board. However, the first Board meeting in
each term should be convened by the director who wins most votes in the shareholders meeting. If the
director who wins most votes or the chairman of the board of directors fails to convene a board meeting,
the majority or more of the directors may convene a board meeting on their own.

For convening a board meeting, the reason should be stated in the meeting notice, and all directors should
be notified seven days prior to the meeting date. However, in case of an emergency, a meeting may be
convened at any time.

The board meeting notice may be in the form of a written notice, fax or e-mail, etc.

Agreed by the relative directors, the notification in the preceding paragraph may be carried out in an
electronic form.

The directors should attend a Board meeting in person. A director who is unable to attend may delegate
another director as proxy to attend on his behalf; however, each director can act as the proxy for only one
other director.
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Article 20

Article 21
Article 22

Article 22-1

Article 23

Article 24

Article 25

Article 25-1

Article 25-2

Article 26

Article 27

Unless otherwise provided in the Company Act, more than half of the directors should be present in a
board meeting before the meeting may start, and the resolution should be passed by more than half of the
directors present at the meeting:

For the motion related to director’s own interests and concerns, the relative director should explain the
importance and relevance in that meeting.

(Deleted)

The powers of the board of directors are as follows:

(1) Review and approval of important legal documents and contracts

(2) Decision on business policy

(3) Approval of budgets and preparation of accounts

(4) Draw up the change of paid-in capital

(5) Draw up the distribution of earnings

(6) Setting of the Company’s major functions and appointment and dismissal of key personnel
(7) Approval of the purchase or disposal of important assets and real estate

(8) Appointment, dismissal and remuneration of the accounting firm for auditing.
(9) Other powers conferred by laws and regulations or shareholders

The powers above should be chartered after due approvals are obtained.

Due to business operational needs, the board of directors may establish an audit committee and a
remuneration committee or other functional committees.

The audit committee is formed by all independent directors in accordance with Article 14-4 of Securities
and Exchange Act.

The number and term of the audit committee members, the official powers of the audit committee, the
rules of procedure for meetings of the audit committee and the exercising of official powers of the Audit
Committee etc. shall be specified in the audit committee charter in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Exercise of Powers by Audit Committees of Public Companies.

All the powers of the supervisors from the Securities and Exchange Act,

the Company Act and other regulations should be performed by the Audit

Committee. The independent directors in the audit committee shall apply mutatis mutandis the regulations
of supervisors’ behaviors and their representative of the Company.

If one third of the director seats are vacant or all independent directors are dismissed from duties, the
board should convene an extraordinary shareholders meeting within 60 days for re-election. The terms of
office are limited to the predecessors’ remaining terms of office.

The Company may have a general manager and several senior vice presidents, vice presidents, managers
and the principals of branches. The provisions in Article 29 of the Company Act should be followed for
the appointment, dismissal and remuneration of such persons. The general manager takes orders from the
Board, and is in charge of all the Company’s business with the assistance from senior vice presidents, vice
presidents and managers.

The board is authorized to determine the remuneration of the chairman, directors based on their levels of
participation in the Company's operations, the value of their contributions and the industry standard.

The remuneration of directors distributed from annual earnings need to be audited by the remuneration
committee and a resolution should be passed by the board meeting and a shareholders’ meeting.

Based on actual needs in carrying out their respective duties, all the Company’s directors may in their
terms of office purchase liability insurance policies to reduce and disperse the risk of damage to all the
directors, the Company and shareholders. The board is fully authorized to take care of all the directors’
purchase of liability insurance policies.

The Company’s fiscal year starts from January 1 and ends on December 31 each year. The board should,
in accordance with the legal procedure, prepare the following documents after the end of each fiscal year
to the shareholders meeting for recognition.

(1) Business report

(2) Financial statements

(3) Motions for distribution of earnings or making up for losses

The Company should distribute 0.6% to 2% of the profit of the current year distributable as employees’
compensation,_including 0.4% or more for grassroots employees, and 3% or less of its profit of the current
year distributable as directors’ remuneration. However, the Company’s accumulated losses shall have been
covered first.

The Company’s profit of the current year distributable mentioned above is the earnings before tax
deducting employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration. A company may, by a resolution of
majority vote at a meeting of board of directors attended by two-thirds or more of the total number of
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directors, have the profit distributable as employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration; in
addition, a report of such distribution shall be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting.

The employees’ compensation can be in the form of shares or cash. And such compensation may apply to
the employees of the Company’s parents or subsidiaries who meet certain specific requirements which
shall be determined by the board of directors.

The Company’s business environment is a stably growing financial industry. For the purpose of business
expansion and re-investment plan, the Company’s policy for dividend distribution takes into
considerations such as the Company’s business development, the Company’s future capital expenditure
budget and demand for fund, shareholders’ interest, and the balance between dividends and the Company’s
long-term financial planning. With regard to the Company’s earnings in each fiscal year, after all taxes and
dues have been paid and losses in previous years have been covered, the Company shall first set aside 10%
as legal reserve, 20% as special reserve, and other reserve specified by relevant regulations. The Company
should add the remaining balance to the undistributed earnings in previous years, and then distribute at
least 10% of it as dividends. Earnings may be distributed in the form of cash dividend or stock dividend,
but the percentage of cash dividend for the year should not be less than 10% of the total dividend for the
year. Dividend may not be distributed if an annual loss occurs, and the loss should be first made up if
retained earnings are used for dividend distribution.

The Company can invest in businesses approved by the Competent Authority and the total amount of its
investments is not limited by Article 13 of the Company Act, unless other laws or regulations provide
otherwise.

The Company’s Articles of Association shall be formulated by the board of directors.

Provisions in relevant laws and regulations should be followed for matters not included in this Articles of
Association.

This Articles of Association was formulated on January 4, 1997. The first amendment was made on
August 11, 1997; the second amendment was made on April 27, 1997; the third amendment was made on
April 8,2002; the fourth amendment was made on November 14, 2002; the fifth amendment was made on
June 27, 2003; the sixth amendment was made on March 17, 2008; the seventh amendment was made on
August 26, 2008; the eighth amendment was made on May 27, 2009; the ninth amendment was made on
May 27, 2010; the tenth amendment was made on June 19, 2012; the eleventh amendment was made on
May 20, 2014; the twelfth amendment was made on May 20, 2015; the thirteenth amendment was made
on May 27, 2016; the fourteenth amendment was made on May 31, 2017; the fifteenth amendment was
made on June 19, 2020; the sixteen amendment was made on June 21, 2022; the seventeen amendment
was made on .2025.
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VIII. Appendix

Capital Futures Corp.
Articles of Association

The Company is organized in accordance with the provisions of the R.O.C. Company Act, and known as
“Capital Futures Corp.”

The Company’s business scope is as follows:
(1) H401011 Futures commission merchant
(Limited to those approved by the FSC)
(2) H405011 Futures consulting business
(3) H407011 Futures management business
(4) H310011 Securities introducing broker
(5) H304011 Securities investment consulting enterprise
(6) H301011 Securities firm
(7) H404011 Leverage transaction merchant

The Company’s headquarter is located in Taipei; the board of directors may, depending on business needs,
establish domestic and overseas branches in appropriate locations on approval by the Competent
Authority.

The Company’s total registered capital is NT$2.5 billion exact, which is divided into 250 million shares at
NT$10 per share; the board of directors is authorized to approve such shares issued in batches. Employees
of the Company subscribing for new shares in accordance with the Company Act include employees of the
Company’s parents or subsidiaries meeting certain specific requirements. The certain specific
requirements shall be specified by the board of directors.

The Company’s shares are in registered form and issued in accordance with the Company Act and other
relevant rules and regulations of the Republic of China. After public offering of shares the Company is
exempt from printing physical share certificates. The Taiwan Securities Central Depository should be
contacted for registration of the shares issued pursuant to the preceding provisions.

The Company’s shareholders should send to the Company their real names, addresses, specimen of their
seals, and uniform tax numbers for registration and future references; this requirement also applies when
there is a change to the information above.

Shareholders should collect dividends or bonuses from the Company or exercise other rights based on
their seals filed with the Company.

Unless otherwise provided in law, the provisions in Regulations Governing the Administration of
Shareholder Services of Public Companies promulgated by the Competent Authority should be followed in
handling share transfer, share pledge, report of share loss, inheritance, gifting, report of seal loss or
change, or change of address.

A Nominal fee may be charged for shareholders’ application for share renewal or replacement.

Share book closures are 60 days before each regular shareholders meeting, 30 days before each

extraordinary shareholders meeting, or five days before the ex-day for the Company’s payment of

dividends, bonuses or other benefits.

The Company’s shareholders meetings are divided into the following two

types:

(3) General shareholders meeting, to be convened within six months after the end of each fiscal year.

(4) Extraordinary shareholders meeting, to be convened when necessary in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations.

Regarding convening of the aforementioned meetings, in accordance with relevant laws and regulations a

written or electronic notice should be sent to shareholders 30 days before a general shareholders meeting

or 15 days before an extraordinary shareholders meeting to notify shareholders of the place and the

subject. The Company’s shareholders meetings may be held by means of visual communication network

or other methods promulgated by the central competent authority. For shareholders with less than a

thousand registered shares, the convening notice to such shareholders may be in the form of a public

announcement in accordance with other relevant laws and regulations.

Except the non-voting shares stipulated in Article 179 of the Company Act or in other laws and decrees,

each share has one voting right.

A shareholder who is unable to attend a general meeting may present the power of attorney issued by the

Company with the level of authorization stipulated, and appoint a proxy to attend the meeting on his
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behalf. Unless otherwise provided in Article 177 of the Company Act, the requirements in Regulations
Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies issued by the
Competent Authority should be followed.

Unless otherwise provided in relevant laws or regulations, shareholders or proxies of shareholders who
hold more than half of the total number of issued shares should be present in a shareholders meeting
before the meeting may start and the resolution be represented, and the resolution should be passed by
more than half of the shareholders present at the meeting. The voting power at a shareholders' meeting
may be exercised by way of electronic transmission; the method of execution shall comply with relevant
regulations.

Before the Company intends to report the voidance of public issue, it should present a proposal at a
shareholders meeting for special resolution, and no further change of this Article 14-1 should be made
during the period of the Company’s shares are traded on the Emerging Market or the Taipei Exchange.

A shareholders meeting shall be convened by the board of directors and the chairman of the board shall be
the meeting’s chairman. In case the chairman of the board of directors is on leave or absent or cannot
exercise his power and authority for any cause, the vice chairman shall act on his behalf. In case the vice
chairman is also on leave or absent or unable to exercise his power and authority for any cause, the
chairman of the board of directors shall designate one of the directors to act on his behalf. In the absence
of such a designation, the directors shall elect from among themselves an acting chairman of the board of
directors. For a shareholders meeting convened by a person with the convening right but other than the
board members, the person who convenes the meeting shall be the meeting’s chairman; if there are two or
more such persons, then the chairman should be selected between/among such persons.

The resolutions made in a shareholders meeting should be recorded in the meeting minutes, which should
be signed by the meeting’s chairman or affixed with his seal and distributed to the shareholders within 20
days after the meeting.

Preparation and distribution of the meeting minutes may be notified of such meeting minutes though a
public announcement.

The Company’s board of directors consists of seven to nine directors who are elected in shareholders
meetings among competent persons. Each person has a term of three years, and may be re-elected.
Among the directors in the preceding paragraph, independent directors should account for three or more,
and be no less than one-fifth of the total directors. Directors should be elected through a nomination
system and by shareholders from a list of director candidates.

Relevant rules of the Competent Authority should be followed concerning independent directors’
professional qualifications, shareholdings, restrictions on their concurrent jobs, the method for nomination
of candidates and other binding matters. Provisions of the securities regulatory body should be followed
concerning the percentage of directors’ total shareholdings.

In electing directors in shareholders meetings, except stipulated in laws and decrees, each share has the
same number of voting rights as the number of directors to be elected. Such voting rights may be used on
one single person or distributed among a number of people, and the persons winning most votes are
elected. If two or more persons win the same number of votes but the total number of specified seats is
exceeded, then a decision may be made among the persons winning the same number of votes through a
drawing of lots; for those who are absent the chairman will perform the drawing on their behalf.

A chairman and a vice chairman of the board should be elected by the Directors among themselves. The
chairman of the board externally represents the Company. In case the chairman of the board of directors is
on leave or absent or cannot exercise his power and authority for any cause, the vice chairman shall act on
his behalf. In case the vice chairman is also on leave or absent or unable to exercise his power and
authority for any cause, the chairman of the board of directors shall designate one of the directors to act on
his behalf. In the absence of such a designation, the directors shall elect from among themselves an acting
chairman of the board of directors.

The board meeting should be convened by the chairman of the board. However, the first Board meeting in
each term should be convened by the director who wins most votes in the shareholders meeting. If the
director who wins most votes or the chairman of the board of directors fails to convene a board meeting,
the majority or more of the directors may convene a board meeting on their own.

For convening a board meeting, the reason should be stated in the meeting notice, and all directors should
be notified seven days prior to the meeting date. However, in case of an emergency, a meeting may be
convened at any time.

The board meeting notice may be in the form of a written notice, fax or e-mail, etc.

Agreed by the relative directors, the notification in the preceding paragraph may be carried out in an
electronic form.

The directors should attend a Board meeting in person. A director who is unable to attend may delegate
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another director as proxy to attend on his behalf; however, each director can act as the proxy for only one
other director.

Unless otherwise provided in the Company Act, more than half of the directors should be present in a
board meeting before the meeting may start, and the resolution should be passed by more than half of the
directors present at the meeting:

For the motion related to director’s own interests and concerns, the relative director should explain the
importance and relevance in that meeting.

(Deleted)

The powers of the board of directors are as follows:

(1) Review and approval of important legal documents and contracts

(2) Decision on business policy

(3) Approval of budgets and preparation of accounts

(4) Draw up the change of paid-in capital

(5) Draw up the distribution of earnings

(6) Setting of the Company’s major functions and appointment and dismissal of key personnel
(7) Approval of the purchase or disposal of important assets and real estate

(8) Appointment, dismissal and remuneration of the accounting firm for auditing.
(9) Other powers conferred by laws and regulations or shareholders

The powers above should be chartered after due approvals are obtained.

Due to business operational needs, the board of directors may establish an audit committee and a
remuneration committee or other functional committees.

The audit committee is formed by all independent directors in accordance with Article 14-4 of Securities
and Exchange Act.

The number and term of the audit committee members, the official powers of the audit committee, the
rules of procedure for meetings of the audit committee and the exercising of official powers of the Audit
Committee etc. shall be specified in the audit committee charter in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Exercise of Powers by Audit Committees of Public Companies.

All the powers of the supervisors from the Securities and Exchange Act,

the Company Act and other regulations should be performed by the Audit

Committee. The independent directors in the audit committee shall apply mutatis mutandis the regulations
of supervisors’ behaviors and their representative of the Company.

If one third of the director seats are vacant or all independent directors are dismissed from duties, the
board should convene an extraordinary shareholders meeting within 60 days for re-election. The terms of
office are limited to the predecessors’ remaining terms of office.

The Company may have a general manager and several senior vice presidents, vice presidents, managers
and the principals of branches. The provisions in Article 29 of the Company Act should be followed for
the appointment, dismissal and remuneration of such persons. The general manager takes orders from the
Board, and is in charge of all the Company’s business with the assistance from senior vice presidents, vice
presidents and managers.

The board is authorized to determine the remuneration of the chairman, directors based on their levels of
participation in the Company's operations, the value of their contributions and the industry standard.

The remuneration of directors distributed from annual earnings need to be audited by the remuneration
committee and a resolution should be passed by the board meeting and a shareholders’ meeting.

Based on actual needs in carrying out their respective duties, all the Company’s directors may in their
terms of office purchase liability insurance policies to reduce and disperse the risk of damage to all the
directors, the Company and shareholders. The board is fully authorized to take care of all the directors’
purchase of liability insurance policies.

The Company’s fiscal year starts from January 1 and ends on December 31 each year. The board should,
in accordance with the legal procedure, prepare the following documents after the end of each fiscal year
to the shareholders meeting for recognition.

(1) Business report

(2) Financial statements

(3) Motions for distribution of earnings or making up for losses

The Company should distribute 0.6% to 2% of the profit of the current year distributable as employees’
compensation, and 3% or less of its profit of the current year distributable as directors’ remuneration.
However, the Company’s accumulated losses shall have been covered first.

The Company’s profit of the current year distributable mentioned above is the earnings before tax
deducting employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration. A company may, by a resolution of
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majority vote at a meeting of board of directors attended by two-thirds or more of the total number of
directors, have the profit distributable as employees’ compensation and directors’ remuneration; in
addition, a report of such distribution shall be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting.

The employees’ compensation can be in the form of shares or cash. And such compensation may apply to
the employees of the Company’s parents or subsidiaries who meet certain specific requirements which
shall be determined by the board of directors.

The Company’s business environment is a stably growing financial industry. For the purpose of business
expansion and re-investment plan, the Company’s policy for dividend distribution takes into
considerations such as the Company’s business development, the Company’s future capital expenditure
budget and demand for fund, shareholders’ interest, and the balance between dividends and the Company’s
long-term financial planning. With regard to the Company’s earnings in each fiscal year, after all taxes and
dues have been paid and losses in previous years have been covered, the Company shall first set aside 10%
as legal reserve, 20% as special reserve, and other reserve specified by relevant regulations. The Company
should add the remaining balance to the undistributed earnings in previous years, and then distribute at
least 10% of it as dividends. Earnings may be distributed in the form of cash dividend or stock dividend,
but the percentage of cash dividend for the year should not be less than 10% of the total dividend for the
year. Dividend may not be distributed if an annual loss occurs, and the loss should be first made up if
retained earnings are used for dividend distribution.

The Company can invest in businesses approved by the Competent Authority and the total amount of its
investments is not limited by Article 13 of the Company Act, unless other laws or regulations provide
otherwise.

The Company’s Articles of Association shall be formulated by the board of directors.

Provisions in relevant laws and regulations should be followed for matters not included in this Articles of
Association.

This Articles of Association was formulated on January 4, 1997. The first amendment was made on
August 11, 1997; the second amendment was made on April 27, 1997; the third amendment was made on
April 8, 2002; the fourth amendment was made on November 14, 2002; the fifth amendment was made on
June 27, 2003; the sixth amendment was made on March 17, 2008; the seventh amendment was made on
August 26, 2008; the eighth amendment was made on May 27, 2009; the ninth amendment was made on
May 27, 2010; the tenth amendment was made on June 19, 2012; the eleventh amendment was made on
May 20, 2014; the twelfth amendment was made on May 20, 2015; the thirteenth amendment was made
on May 27, 2016, the fourteenth amendment was made on May 31, 2017; the fifteenth amendment was
made on June 19, 2020; the sixteen amendment was made on June 21, 2022.

34



Appendix 2

Article 1

Article 2

Article 3

Capital Futures Corp.
Rules of Procedure for Shareholders Meetings

To establish a strong governance system and sound supervisory capabilities for the Company’s
shareholders meetings, and to strengthen management capabilities, these Rules are adopted pursuant to
Article 5 of the Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies.

The rules of procedures for the Company’s shareholders meetings, except as otherwise provided by law,
regulation, or the Articles of Association, shall be as provided in these Rules.

(Convening shareholders meetings and shareholders meeting notices)
Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, the Company’s shareholders meetings shall be
convened by the board of directors.
Changes to how the Company convenes its shareholders meeting shall be resolved by the board of
directors, and shall be made no later than mailing of the shareholders meeting notice.
The Company shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders meeting notice and proxy forms, and
the origins of and explanatory materials relating to all proposals, including proposals for ratification,
matters for deliberation, or the election or dismissal of directors, and upload them to the Market
Observation Post System (MOPS) before 30 days before the date of a regular shareholders meeting or
before 15 days before the date of a special shareholders meeting. This Company shall prepare electronic
versions of the shareholders meeting agenda and supplemental meeting materials and upload them to
the MOPS before 21 days before the date of the regular shareholders meeting or before 15 days before
the date of the special shareholders meeting. However, in the case of the Company with paid-in capital
reaching NT$10 billion or more as of the last day of the most recent fiscal year, or in which the
aggregate shareholding percentage of foreign investors and Mainland Chinese investors reached 30% or
more as recorded in the shareholders' register at the time of holding of the regular shareholders’ meeting
in the most recent fiscal year, it shall upload the aforesaid electronic file by 30 days prior to the day on
which the regular shareholders' meeting is to be held. In addition, before 15 days before the date of the
shareholders meeting, the Company shall also have prepared the shareholders meeting agenda and
supplemental meeting materials and made them available for review by shareholders at any time. The
meeting agenda and supplemental materials shall also be displayed at the Company and the professional
shareholder services agent designated thereby.
The Company shall make the meeting agenda and supplemental meeting materials in the preceding
paragraph available to shareholders for review in the following manner on the date of the shareholders
meeting:
1.For physical shareholders meetings, to be distributed on-site at the meeting.
2.For hybrid shareholders meetings, to be distributed on-site at the meeting and shared on the virtual
meeting platform.
3.For virtual-only shareholders meetings, electronic files shall be shared on the virtual meeting
platform.
The reasons for convening a shareholders meeting shall be specified in the meeting notice and public
announcement. With the consent of the addressee, the meeting notice may be given in electronic form.
Election or dismissal of directors, amendments to the Articles of Association, reduction of capital,
application for the approval of ceasing its status as a public company, approval of competing with the
company by directors, surplus profit distributed in the form of new shares, reserve distributed in the
form of new shares, the dissolution, merger, or demerger of the Company, or any matter under Article
185, paragraph 1 of the Company Act, Articles 26-1 and 43-6 of the Securities Exchange Act, Articles
56-1 and 60-2 of the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities
Issuers shall be set out and the essential contents explained in the notice of the reasons for convening
the shareholders meeting. None of the above matters may be raised by an extraordinary motion.
Re-electing whole directors and the date they will assume office are specified in the reasons for
convening a shareholders meeting, it shall not be raised to alter the date they assume office by an
extempore motion or other methods in the meeting after the re-election complete.
A shareholder holding one percent or more of the total number of issued shares may submit to the
Company a proposal for discussion at a regular shareholders meeting. The number of items so proposed
is limited to one only, and no proposal containing more than one item will be included in the meeting
agenda. When the circumstances of any subparagraph of Article 172-1, paragraph 4 of the Company
Act apply to a proposal put forward by a shareholder, the board of directors may exclude it from the
agenda. A shareholder may propose a recommendation for urging the Company to promote public
interests or fulfill its social responsibilities, provided procedurally the number of items so proposed is
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limited only to one in accordance with Article 172-1 of the Company Act, and no proposal containing
more than one item will be included in the meeting agenda.

Prior to the date on which share transfer registration is suspended before the convention of a regular
shareholders’ meeting, the company shall give a public notice announcing acceptance of proposal in
writing or by way of electronic transmission, the place and the period for shareholders to submit
proposals to be discussed at the meeting; and the period for accepting such proposals shall not be less
than ten (10) days.

Shareholder-submitted proposals are limited to 300 words, and no proposal containing more than 300
words will be included in the meeting agenda. The shareholder making the proposal shall be present in
person or by proxy at the regular shareholders meeting and take part in discussion of the proposal.
Prior to the date for issuance of notice of a sharecholders meeting, the Company shall inform the
shareholders who submitted proposals of the proposal screening results, and shall list in the meeting
notice the proposals that conform to the provisions of this article. At the shareholders meeting the board
of directors shall explain the reasons for exclusion of any shareholder proposals not included in the
agenda.

For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by providing
the proxy form issued by the Company and stating the scope of the proxy’s authorization.

A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy for any given sharecholders
meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form to the Company before 5 days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. When duplicate proxy forms are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail
unless a declaration is made to cancel the previous proxy appointment.

After a proxy form has been delivered to the Company, if the sharecholder intends to attend the meeting
in person or to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronically, a written notice of proxy
cancellation shall be submitted to the Company before 2 business days before the meeting date. If the
cancellation notice is submitted after that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy shall prevail.

If, after a proxy form is delivered to the Company, a shareholder wishes to attend the shareholders
meeting online, a written notice of proxy cancellation shall be submitted to the Company two business
days before the meeting date. If the cancellation notice is submitted after that time, votes cast at the
meeting by the proxy shall prevail.

(Principles determining the time and place of a shareholders meeting)

The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the premises of the Company, or a place easily accessible
to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders meeting. The meeting may begin no earlier than 9 a.m.
and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration shall be given to the opinions of the independent directors
with respect to the place and time of the meeting.

The restrictions on the place of the meeting shall not apply when the Company convenes a virtual-only
shareholders meeting.

(Preparation of documents such as the attendance book)

The Company shall specify in its shareholders meeting notices the time during which attendance
registrations for shareholders, solicitors and proxies (collectively "shareholders™) will be accepted, the
place to register for attendance, and other matters for attention.

The time during which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, as stated in the preceding
paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes prior to the time the meeting commences. The place at which
attendance registrations are accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient number of suitable
personnel assigned to handle the registrations. For virtual shareholders meetings, shareholders may
begin to register on the virtual meeting platform 30 minutes before the meeting starts. Shareholders
completing registration will be deemed as attend the shareholders meeting in person.

Shareholders shall attend shareholders meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other
certificates of attendance. The Company may not arbitrarily add requirements for other documents
beyond those showing eligibility to attend presented by shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy forms
shall also bring identification documents for verification.

The Company shall furnish the attending shareholders with an attendance book to sign, or attending
shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in.

The Company shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting agenda book, annual report,
attendance card, speaker’s slips, voting slips, and other meeting materials. Where there is an election of
directors, pre-printed ballots shall also be furnished.

When the government or a juristic person is a shareholder, it may be represented by more than one
representative at a shareholders meeting. When a juristic person is appointed to attend as proxy, it may
designate only one person to represent it in the meeting.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, shareholders wishing to attend the meeting online shall

36



Article 6-1

Article 7

Article 8

register with the Company two days before the meeting date.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall upload the meeting agenda book,
annual report and other meeting materials to the virtual meeting platform at least 30 minutes before the
meeting starts, and keep this information disclosed until the end of the meeting.

(Convening virtual shareholders meetings and particulars to be included in shareholders meeting notice)

To convene a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall include the follow particulars in the

shareholders meeting notice:

1.How shareholders attend the virtual meeting and exercise their rights.

2.Actions to be taken if the virtual meeting platform or participation in the virtual meeting is obstructed
due to natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events, at least covering the following
particulars:

A.To what time the meeting is postponed or from what time the meeting will resume if the above
obstruction continues and cannot be removed, and the date to which the meeting is postponed or
on which the meeting will resume.

B.Shareholders not having registered to attend the affected virtual shareholders meeting shall not
attend the postponed or resumed session.

C.In case of a hybrid shareholders meeting, when the virtual meeting cannot be continued, if the
total number of shares represented at the meeting, after deducting those represented by
shareholders attending the virtual shareholders meeting online, meets the minimum legal
requirement for a shareholder meeting, then the shareholders meeting shall continue. The shares
represented by shareholders attending the virtual meeting online shall be counted towards the
total number of shares represented by sharecholders present at the meeting, and the shareholders
attending the virtual meeting online shall be deemed abstaining from voting on all proposals on
meeting agenda of that shareholders meeting.

D.Actions to be taken if the outcome of all proposals have been announced and extraordinary
motion has not been carried out.

3.To convene a virtual-only shareholders meeting, appropriate alternative measures available to
shareholders with difficulties in attending a virtual shareholders meeting online shall be specified.

(The chair and non-voting participants of a shareholders meeting)

If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting shall be chaired by the
chairperson of the board. When the chairperson of the board is on leave or for any reason unable to
exercise the powers of the chairperson, the vice chairperson shall act in place of the chairperson; if
there is no vice chairperson or the vice chairperson also is on leave or for any reason unable to exercise
the powers of the vice chairperson, the chairperson shall appoint one of the managing directors to act as
chair, or, if there are no managing directors, one of the directors shall be appointed to act as chair.
Where the chairperson does not make such a designation, the managing directors or the directors shall
select from among themselves one person to serve as chair.

When a managing director or a director serves as chair, as referred to in the preceding paragraph, the
managing director or director shall be one who has held that position for six months or more and who
understands the financial and business conditions of the company. The same shall be true for a
representative of a juristic person director that serves as chair.

It is advisable that shareholders meetings convened by the board of directors be chaired by the
chairperson of the board in person and attended by a majority of the directors, at least one independent
director in person, and at least one member of each functional committee on behalf of the committee.
The attendance shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.

If a shareholders meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but other than the board of
directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. When there are two or more such convening
parties, they shall mutually select a chair from among themselves.

The Company may appoint its attorneys, certified public accountants, or related persons retained by it
to attend a shareholders meeting in a non-voting capacity.

(Documentation of a shareholders meeting by audio or video)

The Company, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder attendance registrations, shall make an
uninterrupted audio and video recording of the registration procedure, the proceedings of the
shareholders meeting, and the voting and vote counting procedures.

The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph shall be retained for at least 1 year. If, however, a
shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording shall be retained
until the conclusion of the litigation.

Where a shareholders meeting is held online, the Company shall keep records of shareholder
registration, sign-in, check-in, questions raised, votes cast and results of votes counted by the Company,
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and continuously audio and video record, without interruption, the proceedings of the virtual meeting
from beginning to end.

The information and audio and video recording in the preceding paragraph shall be properly kept by the
Company during the entirety of its existence, and copies of the audio and video recording shall be
provided to and kept by the party appointed to handle matters of the virtual meeting.

In case of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company is advised to audio and video record the
back-end operation interface of the virtual meeting platform.

Attendance at sharcholders meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares. The number of
shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the shares indicated by the attendance book and
sign-in cards handed in, and the shares checked in on the virtual meeting platform, plus the number of
shares whose voting rights are exercised by correspondence or electronically.

The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time and simultaneously announce
relevant information, such as total number of no voting right shares and shares represented by the
shareholders present at the meeting.

However, when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of issued
shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no more than two such postponements,
for a combined total of no more than one hour, may be made. If the quorum is not met after two
postponements and the attending shareholders still represent less than one third of the total number of
issued shares, the chair shall declare the meeting adjourned. In the event of a virtual shareholders
meeting, the Company shall also declare the meeting adjourned at the virtual meeting platform.

If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding paragraph, but the
attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total number of issued shares, a tentative
resolution may be adopted pursuant to Article 175, paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all shareholders
shall be notified of the tentative resolution and another shareholders meeting shall be convened within 1
month. In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, shareholders intending to attend the meeting
online shall re-register to the Company in accordance with Article 6.

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a majority of the total
number of issued shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative resolution for a vote by the shareholders
meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act.

(Discussion of proposals)

If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting agenda shall be set by the
board of directors, the relevant proposals, including extempore motions, and amendments shall be voted
case by case. The meeting shall proceed in the order set by the agenda, which may not be changed
without a resolution of the shareholders meeting.

The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders meeting convened
by a party with the power to convene that is not the board of directors.

The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of deliberation on the meeting
agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including extempore motions), except by a resolution of the
shareholders meeting. If the chair declares the meeting adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure,
the other members of the board of directors shall promptly assist the attending shareholders in electing
a new chair in accordance with statutory procedures, by agreement of a majority of the votes
represented by the attending shareholders, and then continue the meeting.

The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation and discussion of proposals
and of amendments or extempore motions put forward by the shareholders; when the chair is of the
opinion that a proposal has been discussed sufficiently to put it to a vote, the chair may announce the
discussion closed, call for a vote and arrange appropriate time for voting.

(Shareholder speech)

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker’s slip the subject of the speech,
his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card number), and account name. The order in
which shareholders speak will be set by the chair.

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker’s slip but does not actually speak shall be
deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech does not correspond to the subject given on
the speaker’s slip, the spoken content shall prevail.

Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on the same
proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes. If the shareholder’s speech violates the rules
or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the chair may terminate the speech.

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or interrupt unless they
have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the shareholder that has the floor; the chair shall
stop any violation.

38



Article 12

Article 13

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a shareholders
meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the same proposal.

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or direct relevant personnel
to respond.

Where a virtual shareholders meeting is convened, shareholders attending the virtual meeting online
may raise questions in writing at the virtual meeting platform from the chair declaring the meeting open
until the chair declaring the meeting adjourned. No more than two questions for the same proposal may
be raised. Each question shall contain no more than 200 words. The regulations in paragraphs 1 to 5 do
not apply.

As long as questions so raised in accordance with the preceding paragraph are not in violation of the
regulations or beyond the scope of a proposal, it is advisable the questions be disclosed to the public at
the virtual meeting platform.

(Calculation of voting shares and recusal system)

Voting at a shareholders meeting shall be calculated based the number of shares.

With respect to resolutions of sharecholders meetings, the number of shares held by a shareholder with
no voting rights shall not be calculated as part of the total number of issued shares.

When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there is the likelihood that
such a relationship would prejudice the interests of the Company, that shareholder may not vote on that
item, and may not exercise voting rights as proxy for any other shareholder.

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the preceding paragraph shall
not be calculated as part of the voting rights represented by attending shareholders.

With the exception of a trust enterprise or a shareholder services agent approved by the competent
securities authority, when one person is concurrently appointed as proxy by two or more shareholders,
the voting rights represented by that proxy may not exceed 3 percent of the voting rights represented by
the total number of issued shares. If that percentage is exceeded, the voting rights in excess of that
percentage shall not be included in the calculation.

A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the shares are restricted
shares or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179, paragraph 2 of the Company Act.

When the Company holds a shareholders meeting, it may allow the shareholders to exercise voting
rights by correspondence or electronic means (in accordance with the proviso of Article 177-1 of the
Company Act regarding companies that shall adopt electronic voting: When the Company holds a
shareholder meeting, it shall adopt exercise of voting rights by electronic means and may adopt exercise
of voting rights by correspondence). When voting rights are exercised by correspondence or electronic
means, the method of exercise shall be specified in the shareholders meeting notice. A shareholder
exercising voting rights by correspondence or electronic means will be deemed to have attended the
meeting in person, but to have waived his/her rights with respect to the extempore motions and
amendments to original proposals of that meeting; it is therefore advisable that the Company avoids the
submission of extempore motions and amendments to original proposals.

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means under the
preceding paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent to the Company before 2 days before
the date of the shareholders meeting. When duplicate declarations of intent are delivered, the one
received earliest shall prevail, except when a declaration is made to cancel the earlier declaration of
intent.

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic means, in the event the
shareholder intends to attend the shareholders meeting in person or online, a written declaration of
intent to retract the voting rights already exercised under the preceding paragraph shall be made known
to the Company, by the same means by which the voting rights were exercised, before 2 business days
before the date of the shareholders meeting. If the notice of retraction is submitted after that time, the
voting rights already exercised by correspondence or electronic means shall prevail. When a
shareholder has exercised voting rights both by correspondence or electronic means and by appointing a
proxy to attend a shareholders meeting, the voting rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting shall
prevail.

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in the Company’s Articles of Association, the
passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of the voting rights represented by
the attending shareholders. At the time of a vote, for each proposal, the chair or a person designated by
the chair shall first announce the total number of voting rights represented by the attending
shareholders, followed by a poll of the shareholders. After the conclusion of the meeting, on the same
day it is held, the results for each proposal, based on the numbers of votes for and against and the
number of abstentions, shall be entered into the MOPS.

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present the amended or
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alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order in which they will be put to
a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other proposals will then be deemed rejected, and no
further voting shall be required.

Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the chair,
provided that all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders of the Company.

Vote counting for shareholders meeting proposals or elections shall be conducted in public at the place
of the shareholders meeting. Immediately after vote counting has been completed, the results of the
voting, including the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at the
meeting, and a record made of the vote.

When the Company convenes a virtual shareholders meeting, after the chair declares the meeting open,
shareholders attending the meeting online shall cast votes on proposals and elections on the virtual
meeting platform before the chair announces the voting session ends or will be deemed abstained from
voting.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, votes shall be counted at once after the chair announces
the voting session ends, and results of votes and elections shall be announced immediately.

When the Company convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting, if shareholders who have registered to
attend the meeting online in accordance with Article 6 decide to attend the physical shareholders
meeting in person, they shall revoke their registration two days before the shareholders meeting in the
same manner as they registered. If their registration is not revoked within the time limit, they may only
attend the shareholders meeting online.

When shareholders exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means, unless they have
withdrawn the declaration of intent and attended the shareholders meeting online, except for
extraordinary motions, they will not exercise voting rights on the original proposals or make any
amendments to the original proposals or exercise voting rights on amendments to the original proposal.

(Election matters)

The election of directors at a shareholders meeting shall be held in accordance with the applicable
election and appointment rules adopted by the Company, and the voting results shall be announced
on-site immediately, including the names of those elected as directors and the numbers of votes with
which they were elected, and the rest of candidates and the numbers of votes with which they received.
The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed with the signatures of
the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at least 1 year. If, however, a shareholder files
a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the ballots shall be retained until the conclusion
of the litigation.

Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.
The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of the meeting and a copy distributed to each
shareholder within 20 days after the conclusion of the meeting. The meeting minutes may be produced
and distributed in electronic form.

The Company may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding paragraph by means of a public
announcement made through the MOPS.

The meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place of the meeting, the chair’s
full name, the methods by which resolutions were adopted, and a summary of the deliberations and
voting results including the total number of calculation and the total votes of every candidate shall be
revealed when there is a proposal of director election. The meeting minutes shall be retained for the
duration of the existence of the Company.

Where a virtual shareholders meeting is convened, in addition to the particulars to be included in the
meeting minutes as described in the preceding paragraph, the start time and end time of the
shareholders meeting, how the meeting is convened, the chair's and secretary's name, and actions to be
taken in the event of disruption to the virtual meeting platform or participation in the meeting online
due to natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events, and how issues are dealt with shall also
be included in the minutes.

When convening a virtual-only shareholder meeting, other than compliance with the requirements in
the preceding paragraph, the Company shall specify in the meeting minutes alternative measures
available to shareholders with difficulties in attending a virtual-only shareholders meeting online.

(Public disclosure)

On the day of a shareholders meeting, the Company shall compile in the prescribed format a statistical
statement of the number of shares obtained by solicitors through solicitation, the number of shares
represented by proxies and the number of shares represented by shareholders attending the meeting by
correspondence or electronic means, and shall make an express disclosure of the same at the place of
the shareholders meeting. In the event a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall upload the
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above meeting materials to the virtual meeting platform at least 30 minutes before the meeting starts,
and keep this information disclosed until the end of the meeting.

During the Company’s virtual shareholders meeting, when the meeting is called to order, the total
number of shares represented at the meeting shall be disclosed on the virtual meeting platform. The
same shall apply whenever the total number of shares represented at the meeting and a new tally of
votes is released during the meeting.

If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders meeting constitute material information under applicable
laws or regulations or under Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation (or Taipei Exchange) regulations, the
Company shall upload the content of such resolution to the MOPS within the prescribed time period.

(Maintaining order at the meeting place)

Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders meeting shall wear identification cards or arm
bands.

The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at the meeting place.
When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the meeting place, they shall wear an
identification card or armband bearing the word “Proctor.”

At the place of a shareholders meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through any device other than
the public address equipment set up by the Company, the chair may prevent the shareholder from so
doing.

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair’s correction, obstructing the
proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to
escort the shareholder from the meeting.

(Recess and resumption of a shareholders meeting)

When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time considerations. If a force
majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting temporarily suspended and announce a time when,
in view of the circumstances, the meeting will be resumed.

If the meeting venue is no longer available for continued use and not all of the items (including
extempore motions) on the meeting agenda have been addressed, the shareholders meeting may adopt a
resolution to resume the meeting at another venue.

A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders meeting to defer or resume the meeting within 5 days in
accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act.

(Disclosure of information at virtual meetings)

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company shall disclose real-time results of votes and
election immediately after the end of the voting session on the virtual meeting platform according to the
regulations, and this disclosure shall continue at least 15 minutes after the chair has announced the
meeting adjourned.

(Location of the chair and secretary of virtual-only shareholders meeting)

When the Company convenes a virtual-only shareholders meeting, both the chair and secretary shall be
in the same location, and the chair shall declare the address of their location when the meeting is called
to order.

(Handling of disconnection)

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, the Company may offer a simple connection test to
shareholders prior to the meeting, and provide relevant real-time services before and during the meeting
to help resolve communication technical issues.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, when declaring the meeting open, the chair shall also
declare, unless under a circumstance where a meeting is not required to be postponed to or resumed at
another time under Article 44-20, paragraph 4 of the Regulations Governing the Administration of
Shareholder Services of Public Companies, if the virtual meeting platform or participation in the virtual
meeting is obstructed due to natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events before the chair
has announced the meeting adjourned, and the obstruction continues for more than 30 minutes, the
meeting shall be postponed to or resumed on another date within five days, in which case Article 182 of
the Company Act shall not apply.

For a meeting to be postponed or resumed as described in the preceding paragraph, shareholders who
have not registered to participate in the affected shareholders meeting online shall not attend the
postponed or resumed session.

For a meeting to be postponed or resumed under the second paragraph, the number of shares
represented by, and voting rights and election rights exercised by the shareholders who have registered
to participate in the affected shareholders meeting and have successfully signed in the meeting, but do
not attend the postpone or resumed session, at the affected shareholders meeting, shall be counted
towards the total number of shares, number of voting rights and number of election rights represented at
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the postponed or resumed session.

During a postponed or resumed session of a shareholders meeting held under the second paragraph, no
further discussion or resolution is required for proposals for which votes have been cast and counted
and results have been announced, or list of elected directors and supervisors.

When the Company convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting, and the virtual meeting cannot continue
as described in second paragraph, if the total number of shares represented at the meeting, after
deducting those represented by shareholders attending the virtual shareholders meeting online, still
meets the minimum legal requirement for a shareholder meeting, then the shareholders meeting shall
continue, and not postponement or resumption thereof under the second paragraph is required.

Under the circumstances where a meeting should continue as in the preceding paragraph, the shares
represented by shareholders attending the virtual meeting online shall be counted towards the total
number of shares represented by shareholders present at the meeting, provided these shareholders shall
be deemed abstaining from voting on all proposals on meeting agenda of that shareholders meeting.
When postponing or resuming a meeting according to the second paragraph, the Company shall handle
the preparatory work based on the date of the original shareholders meeting in accordance with the
requirements listed under Article 44-20, paragraph 7 of the Regulations Governing the Administration
of Shareholder Services of Public Companies.

For dates or period set forth under Article 12, second half, and Article 13, paragraph 3 of Regulations
Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies, and Article
44-5, paragraph 2, Article 44-15, and Article 44-17, paragraph 1 of the Regulations Governing the
Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, the Company hall handle the matter
based on the date of the shareholders meeting that is postponed or resumed under the second paragraph.
(Handling of digital divide)

When convening a virtual-only shareholders meeting, the Company shall provide appropriate
alternative measures available to shareholders with difficulties in attending a virtual shareholders
meeting online.

These Rules, and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after adoption by shareholders
meetings.
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Appendix 3

Capital Futures Corp.

Details of All Directors’ Shareholding

1. The Company has a paid-up capital of NT$2,499,375,840, issued in 249,937,584 ordinary shares.

2. According to the “Rules and Review Procedures for Director and Supervisor Share Ownership Ratios at
Public Companies,” the minimum shareholding of the Company’s board directors is 12,000,000 shares.
The Company has established the Audit Committee; therefore, there is no requirement on the minimum

shareholding of the supervisors.

3. As of the book closure date (March 31, 2025) of this annual general meeting, the shareholders’ register
showed the total number of shares held by directors is 138,622,046, which complied with Article 26 of

The Securities Exchange Act. The details are as follows:

Book closure date: March 31, 2025

. Shareholding as of
Title Name book-close date Percentage
. Capital Securities Corp.
Chairman Representative: Chia, Chung-Tao
. Capital Securities Corp.
Director Representative: Lee, Wen-Chu 138,619,711 55.46
. Capital Securities Corp.
Director Representative: Liu, Ching-Tsun
. Hung Yeh Investment Co., Ltd.

Director Representative: Lin, Tzu-Yi 2,335 0.00
Independent Director |Lin, Juh-Cheng 0 0
Independent Director |Hsiao, Nai-Ching 0 0
Independent Director |Wu, Yung-Sheng 0 0

Total directors’ shareholding 138,622,046 55.46
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